MINUTES
REGULAR MEETING — HISTORIC PRESERVATION BOARD
March 15, 2022

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Historic Preservation Board of The City of Daytona Beach,
Florida, held on Tuesday, March15, 2022, at 6:00 p.m., in the Commission Chambers, City Hall, 301
South Ridgewood Avenue, Daytona Beach, Florida.

Call to Order

Roll Call.

Delia Krimmel (Vice-Chair) Present

Allysia Mompoint Excused
Fernando Neves Present
Tracey Remark (Chair) Present
Warren Trager (Secretary) Present
Joseph Vetter Present
Daniel Harshaw Excused
Thomas Makowski Present

Also Present:

Steven Bapp, AICP, Senior Planner
Kira Honse, Assistant City Attorney
Deric C. Feacher, City Manger
James Morris, Deputy City Manager
Gina Fountain, Casual Worker

Ms. Remark, Chair, stated there should be a motion to excuse Ms. Mompoint and Mr. Harshaw from
the March 15, 2022, board meeting because they both called to inform of their absence.

[t was moved by Mr. Trager to excuse Ms. Mompoint and Mr. Harshaw, seconded by Mr. Makowski.
The motion passed 6-to-0 with the breakdown as follows:

Delia Krimmel (Vice-Chair) Yea

Fernando Neves Yea
Tracey Remark (Chair) Yea
Joseph Vetter Yea
Warren Trager (Secretary) Yea
Thomas Makowski Yea

Approval of Minutes

Approval of the Minutes of the January 18, 2022, Regular Historic Preservation Board Meeting held
at City Hall, 301 South Ridgewood Avenue, Daytona Beach, Florida.

Ms. Remark stated that there will be no minutes to approve at this board meeting. She stated there
were no minutes presented to the board members for review prior to the meeting.

1



Board Action

[t was moved by Mr. Trager to postpone approval of the minutes to the next meeting, seconded by
Mr. Makowski. The motion passed 6-to-0 with the breakdown as follows:

Delia Krimmel (Vice-Chair) Yea

Fernando Neves Yea
Tracey Remark (Chair) Yea
Joseph Vetter Yea
Warren Trager (Secretary) Yea
Thomas Makowski Yea

Action Items

Presentation by Mr. Deric C. Feacher, City Manager A discussion with Mr. Deric C. Feacher,
City Manager, on the way ahead for the Orange Avenue Recreation Center, a city-owned property
listed as a contributing structure in The City Island Ball Park National Historic District, 110 East
Orange Avenue, Daytona Beach.

Deric C. Feacher, City Manager, stated his purpose was to discuss the report on the Rec Center,
presented by the staff on February 16, 2022, to elected officials at the meeting of the workshop’s
discussion points. He gave a recap of the workshop on February 16, 2022. He stated he was seeking
the opinion of the board on the historical value of the building.

Mr. Fernando Neves asked what the plans were for this property and if demolished would be a lack
of vision of what it is going to be.

Mr. Feacher stated that if the building was demolished the site would become a green space with no
future use plans of building anything there, and no parking lot plans.

Ms. Krimmel asked if it were to be refurbished, would there be any plans for future use.

Mr. Feacher stated there are no plans for future use, even though there have been emails from citizens
voicing their concerns regarding the building being demolished.

Ms. Remark stated the backup paperwork the board has with three different estimates, one much
earlier than the other two. She asked did staff combine the figures into a starting figure to renovate
the building.

Mr. Feacher stated the figures were combined with an estimate of between one to five million, and
that is only for the renovation and does not include the staffing etc.

Joseph Vetter asked of any idea other than the building was used for the Leisure Services Department,
would it be used for citizen meetings, senior management classes, and what would be a budget line
item to even have a staff member contact there.



Mr. Feacher stated that hiring one to two staff members would cost between $31,000 to $60,000 for
salary depending on benefits and insurance.

Mr. Trager asked if the state statue requirement had an estimate for the renovation of the building.

Mr. Feacher replied, he didn’t think so.

Mr. Trager stated that he believes the estimate previously submitted was lower a couple of years ago.
He stated that he has pictures that he has distributed to people in the audience to review so the board
can listen to what they have to tell them.

Ms. Remark stated that the people in the audience will have their chance to address the board but
currently the board is directing questions to Mr. Feacher.

Mr. Makowski asked if in 2019, this particular structure designed was a last resort.

Mr. Feacher stated that the building listed as a contributing structure to a national discussion and
expanded in 2019 to the Jackie Robinson City Park National Historic Museum. He stated that the
building was a part of a national historic district but not a local district and part of a series of
construction.

Mr. Makowski stated that it is my understanding that looking back through the record that the historic
board on November 19th under that discussion comments it was not even an action item.

Ms. Remark stated that the motion was a recommendation that was passed. She stated as a
recommendation this board does not confirm any local historic district.

Mr. Trager stated that the motion passed 7-to-0 at the November 19th board meeting for the
recommendation.

Ms. Remark stated that after the motion this board went without meetings for eight months because
of Covid-19 so the recommendation could not be forwarded to the commission prior to the community

workshops.

Ms. Remark stated that there are seventeen forms for public comments and there will be three minutes
allotted per speaker.

Public Comments

Bill Chapman 85 Orchard Lane Ormond Beach, Florida., stated that by bringing the building back to
growth and finding use for it, there would be $1,000,000.00 in value versus tearing it down. He stated
that he thought this building was worthy of being saved.

Ted Hordecky 113 Braddock Avenue, stated that he was in favor of saving the building and the reason
for his decision was because he has worked his entire life on renovation of historical properties such
as historical hotels, landmarks, theaters, and societies in the Chicago area. He stated that if the board
was willing to go through with this, he could get people in the community to help with this project.



Sandy Murphy, 136 Park Avenue, stated that the build was built in 1943 by Architect by the last name
of McDonough and funded by Public Works Administration. She stated that a number of things could
be done with the building but until it is designated as historic, it is very hard to go forward.

Amy Pyle 136 South Grandview Avenue, she summarized a public comment by a gentleman name
Patrick McCallister-Writer for Veterans Voice Weekly, regarding the history of the building and
usage.

Anne Ruby 137 Park Avenue, she that the problem with the Rec Center is people think they know the
history of this building when they really do not. She stated that in 2019, she sat for many hours in the
microfilm room and found articles in The News-Journal Center that provided very clear details on
how it was built with what funds and for what purpose. She stated that she wanted to continue
providing the board more details of her investigative research of the building.

Ms. Remark asked if there was anyone willing to provide their three minutes to Ms. Ruby to complete
her presentation. Mr. Gary Peters agreed to provide his time and his public comment form was
removal as a speaker.

Ms. Ruby stated that she is willing to give up her speaking time as well but is in favor of saving the
building. She stated the city is spending millions and millions and millions of dollars to revitalize
Beach Street, but they are going to tear down all the historic structures.

She that the least the board could do is preserve this building as it could become a real centerpiece for
people who are interested in the history of the west.

Jenny Nazak 501 Harvey Avenue, stated that the beautiful architecture of the building would attract
a more mindful and thoughtful class of tourists, and preserving our historic sites is one of those really
good ways to attract a more kind of considerate and respectful type of tourist.

Kimberly Hoffpauir 508 Ribault Avenue, stated that she is within walking distance of the Rec center
and would love to see it stand. She stated that there is so many possibilities for the building, and would
love to see what could come of it by declaring it historic.

Jarred Hoffpauir 508 Ribault Avenue, stated that he just wanted the board to take into consideration
to preserve this building and future use for the next generation.

Heather Files 1640 San Jose Boulevard, stated that she worked with the Halifax Historical Society
Museum since December 2020 and stated that the building represents a lot of history that she did not
learn about in high school such as the women’s army corp. that had been in the area.

Susanne Odena 716 North Wild Olive, stated that she wants this issue to be corrected and the building
made available for her children and grandchildren, who are in the Marines and would provide
important history to the women in her family that are currently serving in the military.

Vernon Weatherholtz 3 Granville Circle, stated that he has been a general contractor for 35 years and
he has two proposals from two very good contractors, but was informed by them that they were told
to bind higher from the Code Enforcement Board.



Mr. Trager is no comparison to what were presented in the proposals. He stated that he feels that the
building was just a malicious neglect from the city. He stated that he was pretty sure the building
could be renovated for a lot less than the proposals that was given.

Sheron Weatherholtz 3 Granville Circle, stated that she thinks the community should volunteer to
save this recreation center and want to put her name at the top of the list.

Chris Daun 132 Pierce Avenue, stated he was the founding chair of the Halifax Heritage Scenic
Byway, which promotes heritage tourism. He stated that other communities have places that have
several buildings to hold their meetings. He stated that a replacement building would cost the city a
lot more money than just renovating this building.

Steven Miller 383 Walnut Street, stated that there is historical value to this particular building based
on the history and that everyone that has spoken tonight is clearly for saving this historical building.

John Nicholson 413 North Grandview Avenue, stated that the previous city manager chose to destroy
the building when the plans were completed to renovate Riverside Park. He stated that the Historic
Board has a chance to change the idea of tearing down this building.

Ruth Trager 610 Bostwick Avenue, stated she went to the building several times, listened to all the
people. She stated that the community could come together to preserve this building. She stated that
the building could become a museum or welcome center because it would be near the veteran’s plaza
and bridge. She stated that it could also be meeting center for the senior citizens or even a café.

Board Comments

Ms. Remark asked the board members if she could provide her comments first even though it was not
the usual protocol. There was no objection from the board members, and she proceeded with the
history of the building, usage by Dr. Mary McLeod Bethune, previous court cases, previous written
studies, and the segregation that was involved regarding the building. She stated that time, effort, and
money could be spent wisely other that restoring this building.

Mr. Trager provided pictures to the board members and individuals in the audience then provided an
explanation of each page that was being reviewed. He stated that it would be a shame to allow this
historic building to be demolished.

Mr. Markowski stated that he could see both sides of the argument and understands the historical
aspects of the building. He understands the cost of the building, but the board should vote on the
historical aspects.

Mr. Neves stated he was in favor of preservation and agrees with those who have spoken.

Mr. Vetter stated that the main purpose of the board was to preserve the history of the City and board
actions should follow that purpose.

Mr. Krimmel stated the board had historic importance, and would be a good tie in to Beach Street and
the riverside park project.



Board Action:

[t was moved by Mr. Neves to send a recommendation to the city commission that this property not
be demolished and explore ways of preserving and keeping it as part of a legacy downtown. Mr.
Trager seconded the motion as presented. The motion passed 5-1 with the breakdown as follows:

Delia Krimmel (Vice-Chair) Yea

Fernando Neves Yea
Tracey Remark (Chair) Nay
Joseph Vetter Yea
Warren Trager (Secretary) Yea
Thomas Makowski Yea

(Quasi-Judicial Hearing): DEV2021-125: CONTINUED FROM 011822 — A request by PROMO
05 LLC, property owner, for a Major Certificate of Appropriateness to demolish a contributing
structure in the South Beach Street Local Historic District located at 630 South Palmetto Avenue,
Daytona Beach, Florida, 32114.

Staff Presentation

Steven Bapp, AICP, Senior Planner, stated that the applicant has withdrawn their request.
(Quasi-Judicial Hearing): DEV2022-023: A request by Lance Frank, property owner, for a Major
Certificate of Appropriateness for solar panels added to the roof of a contributing structure of a local

historic district, located at 311 Riverview Boulevard, Daytona Beach, FL 32118.

Staff Presentation:

Mr. Steven Bapp, AICP, Senior Planner, presented the staff report that was included as part of the
packet. He stated that the applicant will not be altering any of the characteristics of colonial revival
architectural style. He stated that the staff recommends approval.

Applicant:

Lance Frank, 311 Riverview Boulevard, Daytona Beach, Florida 32118, stated that he has installed a
darker roof that would be compatible with the solar panels to minimize the visual impact. He stated
that the solar panels are low profile and are iron range railing and blends with the color of the roof.

Board Action

Mr. Trager moved to approve the request per staff recommendations. Ms. Krimmel seconded the
motion. The motion passed 6-0 with the breakdown as follows:

Delia Krimmel (Vice-Chair) <8
Fernando Neves Yea
Tracey Remark (Chair) Yea
Joseph Vetter Yea
Warren Trager (Secretary) Yea
Thomas Makowski Yea



Other Business

None

Staff Updates

Citizen Advisory Board- Required Ethics Training Announcement

Ms. Honse stated that this is follow-up information regarding the required Ethics Training for the 107
board members to attend a four-hour training. She stated that all board members must contact the City

Clerk to schedule for one of the sessions.

Public Comments

Board Comments

No comments

Adjournment

There being no further discussion or comments the meeting was adjourned at 8:29 pm.

W/&acw Komark.

Tracey Re
Chair

(L Yok

Fountal
Recording Secr




